
QUESTIONS-ANSWERS-CLARIFICATIONS 
 

NORTHEAST STOCKTON LIBRARY AND COMMUNITY CENTER 
PROJECT NO. PW1724 

              
 
1. Question: Will there be a bid conference for general contractors?  
 
 Answer: No pre-bid conference will be held for this project.  The existing site is an empty 

field. 
 
2. Question: Will there be a list of general contractors provided? 
 
 Answer: The list of plan holders can be found on the City’s Bidflash page at the link shown 

below. 
 

 http://www.stocktonca.gov/services/business/bidFlash/projDetail.html?dept=Publi
c_Works,idnum=_PW1724_ 

 
3. Question: Is this a union only/PLA? 
 
 Answer: The project is subject to the City’s Community Workforce Training Agreement 

(CWTA). 
 
4. Question: Are there any pre-qualifications required for this project? 
 
 Answer: The only prequalification’s for this project are the bid bonding and licensing 

requirements. 
 
5. Question: Has a hazardous building survey been done for this project. 
 
 Answer: This project will construct a new building where there is currently an empty field 

with no prior hazardous materials concerns. 
 
6. Question: Would construction on the project start soon after bid opening?  
 
 Answer: The contract for this project will need to go to City Council for award and is 

anticipated to be full executed sometime in October or November of this year. 
 
7. Question: Does the City have quantity takeoffs for the interior and exterior signage on this 

project? 
 
 Answer: The City does not have quantities for individual items on this project.  Contractors 

will be required to preform their own quantity take offs. 
 
8. Question: Are you accepting material testing and special inspections bids? 
 
 Answer: We are not accepting material testing and special inspection bids.  Our CM 

already has a firm on board. 
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9. Question: The bidding schedule on the bid forms is blank.  Will a revised bid sheet be 
uploaded? 

 
 Answer: An addendum will be issues to correct the error. 
 
10. Question: Per 27 51 16 The manufactures specified are Bogen, Roland Borg or approved 

equal. Will the owner accept Carehawk by Dukane as an approved equal? 
 
  Answer: Please refer to Section 007213 Article 5.3.2 of the project Special Provisions.  

Substitution proposals will not be considered prior to bid opening. 
  
11. Question: I did not see a bid bond form in the specifications, so I am just confirming we are  
  to have our surety provide us with their form. 
 
  Answer: Yes, your surety will need to provide their own form.  
  
12. Question: Section 2.2 of the specs calls out a crystal exterior sheet and Section 3.5 call out 

an ice blue finish.  Please clarify which finish is correct 
 
  Answer: Comply with the Light transmission, solar heat gain coefficient, and U-factors 

listed in Specification Section 084523-Fiberglass Sandwich Panel Assemblies 
Article 3.5”. 

  
13. Question: Design criteria lists a mullion deflection of ¼” which would translate to a 

deflection of L/384 which is stricter than what is required for a glass skylight. Per 
IBC code a deflection of L/120 is required. Can we ask if L/120 is acceptable for 
mullion deflection? 

 
  Answer: Maximum mullion deflection of ¼” as specified is required. 
 
14. Question: When is the deadline to submit pre-bid questions? 
 
  Answer: The deadline to submit questions will be 5:00 PM Thursday June 11, 2020.  
  
15. Question: We were looking at the Stockton Library job today and are very interested in 

bidding on the structural steel and miscellaneous metals package for the job but 
we noticed there is an AISC Quality Certification Program requirement listed for 
fabrication and erection.  We would like to submit a request to have the 
specification wording changed to be, "in accordance with AISC standards" or 
something to that effect that would remove the AISC certification requirement. 

 
  Answer: After review and consideration of your request we have determined that removal 

of the AISC Quality Certification Program is not in the best interest of the project 
and will remain a requirement on the project. 

 
16. Question: When will the project be completed? 
 
  Answer: While the City has not opened bids on the project, we anticipate construction 

beginning in late 2020 and it is anticipated construction on the project will be 
completed in summer od 2022.  Construction of the project is anticipated to take 
approximately 18 months. 
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17. Question: Johns Manville offers fiberglass blanket insulation that is comparable to the other 

mfgs. listed in section 07 21 00 – 2.3 and we’d appreciate your consideration in 
adding JM as an approved equal.  

 
  Answer: Product submittals and substitution requests will be considered during the 

construction phase. As indicated in Specification Section 01813.14 – Sustainable 
Design Requirements – LEED v4 BD+C, compliance with requirements needed 
to obtain LEED prerequisites and credits will be used as one criterion to evaluate 
substitution requests and comparable product requests.  Please also refer to 
Articles 2.1 and 2.2 of that spec section.  As indicated in Article 2.1.A, the 
Contractor is responsible to provide products and procedures necessary to 
obtain the required LEED credits. 

 
18. Question: Please refer to the Structural Steel specification, 05 12 00, 1.6 A & B, AISC 

certifications. IF the fabricator has the AISC certification and does its own 
erection, can the installer certification be waived? 

 
  Answer: An LOC will be issued to clarify that an AISC certified fabricator does not need to 

have AISC installer certification if they are doing both fabrication and installation. 
 
19. Question: May I please have a copy of the sign in sheet for the Library job walk? 
 
  Answer: No job walks were held for this project.  The existing site is an empty field 

adjacent to a school. 
 
20. Question: Would you please clarify what the slab section is?  I see there is 5” and 7” slab 

called out, but we can’t find how much gravel is required under the slab. 
 
  Answer: We will issue a LOC to clarify the issue.  For now, please refer to Section 10.1 of 

the geotechnical report in the specifications. 
 
21. Question: Structural drawing 1/S5.2 shows the slab on grade pours in 30' squares. Can the 

slab be divided into 2 continuous pours? 
 
  Answer: The information shown in this detail is ACI suggested slab joint 

construction.  Putting the additional, closer spaced jointing is encouraged 
depending on the aesthetic needs.  We recommend that joints should be spaced 
so that the slab is divided into small rectangular areas, the ratio of the long side 
to the short side shouldn't exceed 1.25.  Our plan notes require the contractor to 
submit a joint plan to the Architect for approval.   We would not recommend a 
continuous pour unless the contractor can demonstrate their ability to perform the 
task with an acceptable level of cracking.  

 
22. Question: Please confirm location of concrete columns per details 6,7/S5.3 
 
  Answer: No clarification necessary, typical is adequate. 
 
23. Question: To satisfy the local hire requirements, we have 16 employees that live in 

Stockton, with a few more than that in the county.  Would this meet the local hire 
requirements for this project? 
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  Answer: If at least 50% of your workforce has been a resident of Stockton for at least one 

year the local hire requirement is being met. 
 
24. Question: We are not a union shop, but when we submit our certified payroll we include 

money in there for the DIR training fund.  What is the cost per hours worked?  Is 
it $0.50 per hours worked?  And would this be acceptable? 

 
  Answer: The employer payments to the Training Fund are determined by the classification 

of the employee. Please refer to the specific prevailing wage rate for each 
classification: https://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/2020-1/PWD/index.htm 

 
25. Question: I also see that page G701 of the plans do not include any wayfinding (directional) 

signage.  Is this something that is being requested as well?  I think that we would 
need to confirm the quantity types of room id for anything other than the D5 type 
on G701.  

 
  Answer: All of the signs in the project are shown in the drawings – all ADA required 

signage.  
 
26. Question: Is there any signage plan for the café area? 
 
  Answer: There is no site directional signage or special café signage. 
 
27. Question: Aside from the external façade signage, would any wayfinding (directional) 

signage be needed at the entrance of the parking lot?  A monument sign or 
something similar? 

 
  Answer: No 
 
28. Question: Per Detail 4 on sheet S5.5 5 the number of rows of bolts is determined by DL1, 

DL2 or DL3. Problem is on plans only DL is called out, how do we know how 
many rows of bolts should be used at all DL beam ends? DL is shown on all 
collector beams, see S121. 

 
  Answer: Plan note 5 on S1.3 requires 2 rows of bolts typ at DL connections uno. 
 
29. Question: Neither Civil C4.0 or Site Plumbing PS101 drawing shows size of Underground 

Gas. Civil C4.0 refers to PG&E design drawings that are not given.  Please 
provide sizing for Underground Gas shown on Plumbing sheet PS101. 

 
  Answer: The City is still waiting for PG&E to complete its design for the project and will 

incorporate PG&E’s design once we have it. 
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